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RFP #16-001 

Written Questions & Responses 
 
Page: 2 
Section: 2  
Does CCGI have partners with specific institutions at the postsecondary level to provide students with 
accounts? Or is the vendor expected to provide the system access to all postsecondary users 
throughout California? 
 

The system must have open access to all postsecondary users throughout California.   
 
Page: 6 
Section: 4.3 
Regarding the response limit of 120 pages (60 double-sided pages), please clarify if appendices, such as 
resumes, must be included within the 120 pages or if they may be in addition to the 120 pages? 
 

The 120 page limit is inclusive of all appendices and attachments.  However, the vendor 
financial information, which must be in a separate sealed envelope, can be in addition to the 
120 pages. 

 
Page: 9 
Section: 4.17 
Can vendors use international subcontractors? 
 

Yes, vendors can use international subcontractors so long as no student data is transferred or 
stored outside of the United States. 

 
Page: 18 
Section: 11.2 
Will CCGI provide a list of K-12 schools, or is this something vendors need to procure on their own? 
 

CCGI will provide the list of schools. 
 
Page: 18 
Section: 11.3 B 
Can CCGI please share a list of all middle schools, high schools, and postsecondary institutions they 
anticipate will use the system? 
 

The system must provide open access to all (public and private) middle schools, high schools, 
and postsecondary institutions within California, regardless of whether or not they elect to use 
the system.  
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Page: 19 
Section: 11.4 B 
Please provide a list of all, or the most common, SIS used by CCGI. 
 

Given the number of school districts in California, there are a broad range of student 
information systems utilized. The proposed solution for auto creating student accounts and 
integrating transcript files must be capable of working with any student information system.   

 
Page: 19 
Section: 11.5 C 
“Describe the process for deleting or purging the system of user accounts.” Please clarify if you are 
looking for a description of the technical process, the business process, or both?  
 

Vendors should describe the business process and technical process for purging the system of 
user accounts. 

  
Page: 19 
Section: 11.5 E 
“The system is required to have the ability to recover deleted accounts.  Describe how end users can 
recover a deleted account and the length of time the deleted account is recoverable.” To comply with 
the requirements of California Education Code § 49073.1, a vendor must be able to provide a 
certification that pupil records shall not be retained or available to them upon completion of a contract, 
thereby legally requiring a deletion method that does not, in any way, retain an account or any of the 
data in it. The ability to recover a deleted account would be contrary to the requirements of the 
legislation.” Please clarify. 
 

This requirement specifically relates to the ability to recover an account that was accidentally 
deleted, within the period of the contract. The referenced California Education Code stipulates 
that “pupil records shall not be retained or available to them upon completion of a contract.” 

 
Page: 24 
Section: 11.8 
Please provide a list of all data-sharing partnerships. 
 

A list of CCGI’s partner districts, which include data-sharing is listed on the CCGI website at 
http://foundationccc.org/What-We-Do/Student-Success/California-College-Guidance-
Initiative/Our-Partners. There are currently ten additional districts who are working on data-
sharing agreements and we anticipate continued expansion of our data-sharing partnerships. 

 
Page: 26 
Section: 11.9.G 
Please explain what functionality you expect when postsecondary information is “correlated” with 
career information. 
 

The postsecondary and career information within the system should be connected and allow 
students to seamlessly search both databases. For example, if I am a student searching a 
specific career, I can then search the postsecondary schools who offer the program aligned with 
that career and start a postsecondary search. 
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Page: 26 
Section: 11.9 I 
Can you provide details of what standardized testing will be expected to be collected in the portfolio 
per section 11.9.I?   

 
The system must provide a field in which to capture test scores as 1) uploaded by partner 
districts as part of the transcript file, or b) self entered by the student. The origin of the data 
and the date of entry must be flagged for each score and sub-scores. Fields should be made 
available for the following tests:   
� ACT  
� SAT and SAT subject area tests 
� Advanced Placement 
� International Baccalaureate 
� Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium assessment results 

 
Page: 27 
Section: 11.11 
Please describe the functionality you expect to get from integration with the FAFSA API. 
 

Vendors should reference the announcement (below) from Federal Student Aid regarding the 
availability of the FAFSA API.  In delivering FAFSA API functionality, CCGI would be responsible 
for ensuring the appropriate MOU is in place with the California Student Aid Commission.  
Vendors are responsible for providing functionality that allows for integration with the FAFSA 
API. https://ifap.ed.gov/eannouncements/attachments/20142015StateAPIInvitation.pdf 

 
Page: 27 
Section: 11.11 C 
Please advise if there are state-level financial aid providers to consider beyond the California Student 
Aid Commission (CSAC) referenced on the pre-response conference call? 
 

There are no other state-level financial aid providers to consider at this time. However, the 
system must have the ability to include content and information reflecting other state and 
federal financial aid programs available to California students. 

 
Page: 27 
Section: 11.13 B 
What is meant by "state-specific" in this case? Is CCGI requiring the platform be customized by the 
California Specific industry sectors found on the department of education's website 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/sf/ctemcstandards.asp) in addition to the NASDCTEc's career pathways? 
 

California’s Career Clusters are slightly different than the national set of career clusters and 
thus, the system must be configured to reflect California’s 15 Career Clusters. The following 
website reflects some of the differences between the national career clusters and California’s 
Career Clusters: https://careertech.org/california 
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Page: 27 
Section: 11.3.B  
Just to verify, CCGI will not provide the list of California K-12 schools or post-secondary institutions? 
 

CCGI will provide the list of California schools  
 

Page: 28 
Section: 11.13 H 
What specific information in your opinion is most useful to the users of the system to see? 
 

CCGI requires the system include local labor market information, which will assist users in 
making important decisions about which careers they choose to focus on. Examples of useful 
data are as follows: 

 
� Labor market information should be presented by geography, which will assist students in 

understanding the local and regional job outlook. 
� Occupations in Demand and Projections (Occupations with the most job openings) 
� California Specific Wage Information by Career 

 
A tremendous amount of this data is available at http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov. 

 
Page: 28 
Section: 11.13 I 
What are CCGI expectations around a "national database of jobs currently available" per section 11.13.I? 
Is it data around occupation growth and future outlook or an actual job posting site? 
 
 This requirement specifically relates to an actual job posting site or search engine.   
 
Page: 28 
Section: 11.13 I 
If proposers system licenses and embeds third party technology into their core platform do we need to 
represent that third party as a subcontractor? (e.g. licensing and embedding of a national job search 
technology to meet requirement 11.13 I) 
 

If the vendor incorporates third party functionality/code into the software then the vendor must 
have a license to do so. If the vendor is utilizing a public API the vendor should inform us and 
provide a print out of the API terms of use to turn in with the paper deliverables.  

 
Page: 29 
Section: 11.14 G & H 
The term “program of study” means different things in different state and even school districts. Please 
provide more information about what a “program of study” means for these two items and the type of 
personalization you expect users to be able to do. 

 
The “program of study" referenced in this requirement is sometimes referred to as a plan of 
study and is a sequences of high school courses.  As part of the academic planning module, the 
functionality must allow a student to save one or more programs of study to their portfolio.  As 
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a student plans their courses, the system must provide functionality which allows the student to 
amend or personalize the program of study based on their unique situation. 

 
Page: 30 
Section: 11.16.B 
Is a mobile alert the same as a text message? 
 

CCGI views mobile alerts (sometimes referred to as push notifications) and text messages as 
two different types of technology. Mobile Alerts are sent via your phones operating system and 
are isolated to smart phones. Text messages are sent to a phone number and have the ability to 
reach phones other than smart phones. 

 
Page: 30 
Section: 11.18 A 
The RFP indicates that integration with the California State University (CSU) admission system will be 
required for launch (which is footnoted on 16B, Page 46 to be on June 1, 2017).  
 

1. Please indicate when technical integration requirements will be available for CSU's new online 
admission system.  
 
As California State University (CSU) admissions system integration requirements are not 
currently available, vendors should provide specific examples of their experience in this area 
and confirm vendor resources will be available to complete the integration prior to launch. 
 

2. Please clarify if the vendor for that system provides an API or some other means to integrate 
with it?  
 
Given requirements are not currently available, please articulate vendor’s capabilities with 
delivering this type of integration via an API or other alternative technologies. 
 

3. If the vendor for the CSU Application System does not provide an API or other means to 
integrate with the system, please clarify who is responsible for any costs from that vendor to 
complete the integration with CCGI? 
 
The final costs/price of integrating with the CSU Application will be negotiated with the vendor 
selected through this RFP process. 
 

4. If the CSU admission system is delayed, will that delay the intended launch of the CCGI system 
of June 1, 2017?  
 
CCGI will coordinate with CSU to launch the admissions system integration. Any delays with 
the CSU admission system will be factored into the launch of the integration, if and when they 
occur. 
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Page: 30 
Section: 11.19 A  
As indicated in the RFP, integration with the California Community Colleges Admissions System 
(OpenCCC) is anticipated.   
  

1. Please indicate when technical integration requirements will be available for CCC's Admissions 
System?   
  
As OpenCCC integration requirements are not currently available, vendors should provide 
specific examples of their experience in this area and confirm vendor resources will be available 
to complete the integration prior to launch. 
 

2. Please clarify if the vendor for the CCC Admissions System provides an API or some other 
means to integrate with it?  
 
Given requirements are not currently available, please articulate vendor’s capabilities with 
delivering this type of integration via an API or other alternative technologies 
 

3. If the vendor for the CCC Admissions System does not provide an API or other means to 
integrate with the system, please clarify who is responsible for any costs from that vendor to 
complete the integration with CCGI?  
 
The final costs/price of integrating with OpenCCCApply will be negotiated, in good faith, with 
the vendor selected through this RFP process. 

 
Page: 31 
Section: 11.20 
Do you have a preferred transcript provider? 
 

CCGI is open to vendor proposed transcript providers, so long as those providers can meet the 
requirements of this RFP.   

 
Page: 33 
Section: 12.3 A & D 
Please provide examples of professionals/professional users. 
 

Section 12.1, Professional and Administrative User Roles, provides a complete list of 
professional and administrative user roles. Vendors should describe any single sign on required 
to allow professionals and/or administrators to access functionality. Further, the proposed 
system must provide functionality which allows the professional and administrative users listed 
to share reports. 

 
Page: 33 
Section: 12.5 
Please provide an example of how career pathways can vary from district to district. 

 
Assuming this question is in regards to 12.5 J, the system may be enhanced in the future to 
assist local school districts with measuring student progress against local career pathways. In 
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the state of California, Career Clusters are defined at the state level while career pathways are 
locally defined, at the local school district level. As each district is unique, the vendor would 
need to propose a system that could accommodate pathways in each district. Please describe 
vendor capabilities and/or relevant experience in measuring course plans against career 
pathways, regardless of if they are defined at the local or state level. 

 
Page: 35 
Section: 12.5 L 
There is a request for reporting on DreamAct (12.5 L), but DreamAct is not mentioned anywhere else in 
the RFP. What is the expectation for DreamAct tracking functionality? 
 

Dream Act tracking and reporting functionality referenced in 12.5 L is functionality that may be 
developed in the future and is not required for launch of the system. However, vendors are 
required to supply a link to the California Dream Act application within the proposed system. 

 
Page: 36 
Section: 12.6 B 
What is the definition of a region? Is it a grouping of districts? Would a single district ever be split across 
multiple regions? 
 

A region is defined as the area covered by a county office of education. No district would ever 
be split across multiple regions. 

 
Page 36 
Section 12.7 C 
Please clarify if the second paragraph of section 12.7 C should be labeled 12.7 D since it appears to 
describe a unique requirement and is not a continuation of the first paragraph?  
 

The requirement should be labeled 12.7 D. 
 
Page: 36 
Section: 12.8 
Please provide examples of professionals. 
 

Specifically related to scholarship management, the following professionals would need access 
to scholarship management functions: 
� K-12 Educator User Role 
� K-12 Counselor User Role 
� K-12 Administrator User Role 
� K-12 Community Support/Authorized 3rd Party User Role 
� District Administrator User Role 

 
Page: 37 
Section: 12.11 C  
Please provide more insight or specific use case examples of automation allowing alerts and text 
messages to be aligned within activities. 
 



	 8	

As an example, Section 12.4 indicates that system must have the ability to set up a defined list 
of activities that students are required to complete and provide a means for communicating 
with those students who have not completed required activities. When the professional sets up 
the defined list of activities, they must have the ability to automate mobile alerts and/or text 
messages as a reminder to complete activities within the system. 

 
Page: 37-38 
Section: 12.12, 12.3 
Please provide an example of how career pathways can vary from district to district. 
 

In the state of California, Career Clusters are defined at the state level while career pathways 
are locally defined, at the local school district level.  As each district is unique, the vendor would 
need to propose a system that could accommodate pathways in each district. The system may 
be enhanced in the future to assist local school districts with measuring student progress 
against career pathways. Please describe vendor capabilities and/or relevant experience in 
measuring course plans against career pathways, regardless of if they are defined at the local or 
state level. 

 
Page: 38 
Section: 12.12 B   
In an attempt to seek further clarification to an answer provided during the pre-response conference 
call (question related to Sections 11.14 G & H), please elaborate on local district career pathways.  More 
specifically: 
 

1. Please clarify if the intent is to provide local Programs of Study based on career clusters? 
2. Please clarify what is meant by career pathways? 
3. Please clarify if these are Programs of Study linked to a State defined Career Cluster/Pathway 

or if they are something else?  
 

In the state of California, Career Clusters are defined at the state level while career pathways 
are locally defined, at the local school district level. As each district is unique, the vendor would 
need to propose a system that could accommodate pathways in each district. This is future 
enhancement which means the specific requirements for this feature will be defined in 
partnership with CCGI stakeholders and the selected vendor. In this section, we are looking for 
examples of vendor experience in measuring course plans against local career pathways, local 
programs of study and/or local graduation requirements. We also request vendor confirmation 
that the vendor has available resources to partner with CCGI in continuously enhancing the core 
system to include new functionality. 
 
 

Page: 39 
Section: 12.13 E Bullet 3 
Can you please provide an example of a ‘standardized rule’ that CCGI would like to apply. 
 

Data uploaded from CCGI partner districts sometimes have structural nuances that are specific 
to their local Student Information Systems. Where patterns can be identified, rules can be 
applied to bring such data sets into more precise alignment with the requirements of data-
informed functionalities. One example would be work in progress courses that are coded as a 
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full year term type, instead of as two discrete semesters.  In this instance, districts would be 
able to enable a rule that would automate the division of that course into two semester terms. 

 
Page: 42 
Section: 14.17 
Please confirm that there is no section 14.17.   
 

CCGI confirms there is not a section 14.17. 
 

Page: 42 
Section: 14.17 
There appears to be a missing section for 14.17. Is this a number oversight or is there a missing 
requirement? 
 

This is a number oversight. 
 
Page: 42 
Section: 14.18 
Please define "transfer to a personal account.” 
 

Vendors should propose functionality which allows students to retain possession and control of 
or transfer their own student generated content.   

 
Page: 44 
Section: 15.2 
What CRM user interactions are you looking to integrate into the proposed system? 
 

CCGI provides direct management and oversight of all end user interactions and support. The 
intention of this requirement is not to integrate a vendor supplied CRM.  Rather, CCGI is 
requesting integration of their existing support infrastructure, with the CCGI CRM supplied by 
SalesForce. 
 

Page: 45 
Section: 16 
Is it CCGI’s preference that the system is immediately released to all schools in California on June 1, 
2017, or released in tiers over a certain period of time? 
 

CGI requires delivery of the system to all schools in California on or before June 1, 2017. 
 
Page 46: 
Section: N/A 
The note on the bottom of page 46 indicates "*Note, the system will not be launched until June 1, 
2017." while the note in paragraph B indicates "Proposers should assume full delivery of these 
components by June 1, 2017 with open access to K-12 and postsecondary students in the state of 
California, including data integration for current and future CCGI partner districts"; Is the stated desire 
to have the complete system go live date by June 1, 2017 or is the desire to have the base system live 
sooner and then the requested customizations live before June 1, 2017. 
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The desire is to have the complete system go live on June 1, 2017 with open access to all K-12 
and postsecondary students in the state of California, inclusive of live data integrations with 
CCGI partner districts. However, CCGI anticipates additional customizations which may be 
delivered after the June 1 deadline.  Those customizations are specifically called out as future 
enhancements or anticipated functionality. 

 
Page: 47 
Section: Attachment A 
For Attachment A on Tab 12 of the final proposal there does not appear to be a defined form covering 
'Acknowledge Receipt of Addenda'; is a simple letter acknowledging the addenda the intent or is there 
a preferred format? 
 

Vendors are required to provide simple letter acknowledging receipt of any and all RFP 
addenda, including CCGI's response to vendor questions. 

 
Page: 47 
Section: Attachment A Terms and Conditions Section I Definitions 
 
 “Third Party Products:” As CCGI’s territory and area of focus is providing services to K-12 school 
districts in California, please clarify why any rights, licenses, consents and approvals, in connection with 
any Third Party products incorporated into the Deliverables, are required to be “worldwide.”   
 

This language was provided to us by external IP counsel and we are advised that it is fairly 
standard language for development agreements. We have no intention of moving outside of 
our area of focus. If a vendor is unable to secure all of the rights set forth in this section CCGI 
would have to agree to any deviation in writing. The deliverables are required to be 
“worldwide” because we can not have a tool on the website not usable/accessible by students 
outside of California. Said a different way, all of our tools must be usable by any student 
anywhere who has an interest in going to college in California, is a California high school 
student, or California community college student looking at going to school outside of 
California.  

 
Page: 50 
Section: 5.1  
Please confirm that the License for Third Party Products would only continue during the Term of any 
resulting agreement.   
 

In this RFP the vendor is creating a work for hire product whose usefulness is intended to 
extend beyond the terms of any agreement between vendor and CCGI. To the extent third 
party licenses require periodic renewals the vendors should advise us of the renewal periods 
and associated fees.  

Page: 50 
Section: 5.1 
Please clarify why any Third Party Licenses need to be transferable since in most cases such licenses are 
non-transferable.  

This language was provided to us by external IP counsel and we are advised that it is fairly 
standard language for development agreements. If a vendor is unable to secure a transferable 
license CCGI would have to agree to any deviation in writing.  
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Page: 51 
Section: 5.2  
Please clarify if the intent is for the scope of ownership of intellectual property to be limited to 
customizations that are developed specifically and uniquely for CCGI.  
 

As it says in Section 5.2, the scope of ownership excludes third party products. Thus, the scope of 
ownership only extends to the results and proceeds of the development services that is not a third 
party product. By definition, this can only include the original components developed specifically 
for this project.  

 
Page: 51 
Section: 5.2 
Please clarify the phrase “solely or jointly with others” as it relates here and how this works with Work 
Product that “are and shall remain the exclusive property of CCGI,” if someone else contributes.   
 

Our external IP counsel tells us that this is a very standard work for hire provision. To answer 
your question, the language means that if vendor brings on some independent contractors to 
work on the software, then vendor is responsible for making sure that those independent 
contractors work on a work for hire basis.  

 
Page: 53 
Section: 7.2 
The first sentence of Section 7.2 appears to provide a continued License to CCGI even in the event that 
CCGI either breaches the agreement (and fails to cure) or terminates the agreement early on thirty (30) 
days’ notice. Please clarify.  
 

In that this is a work for hire agreement, all IP rights in the non third party products vest with 
CCGI immediately and forever, Vendor’s remedy in the case of a CCGI breach is damages. With 
regard to the third party products, they will be licensed to CCGI for whatever their term may be 
and should no be co-terminous with the agreement between vendor and CCGI. A breach by 
CCGI of the agreement between CCGI and vendor should not affect any of the licenses for the 
third party products.   

 
Page: 63 
Section: 12.13 D Attachment E Bullet 4 
“Data will be stored for each upload to allow for time-specific reporting.” Please clarify what specific 
reports are required that relate to the data in every upload file? 
 

CCGI requires the ability to provide time-specific comparative analyses for all reportable 
activities. This includes all data-informed functionalities associated with uploads from our 
partner districts. Please reference section 12.5 for reporting requirements. 
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Page: N/A 
Section: N/A 
Is the presentation from Monday, May 16’s pre-proposal call available for vendor review? 
 

The presentation from the May 16th pre-proposal call was intended to give vendors who 
participated an opportunity to learn about CCGI and ask questions. Vendors responses to this 
RFP should be based on the written RFP and the formal responses to these questions. 

 
Page: N/A 
Section: N/A 
What technology platform is the OpenCCCApply built on? Can you provide additional technical 
information on integration capabilities (e.g. published APIs, integration guides, etc) 
 

As OpenCCC integration requirements are not currently available, vendors should provide 
specific examples of their experience in this area and confirm vendor resources will be available 
to complete the integration prior to launch.  

 
Page: N/A 
Section: N/A 
Who is the current provider for CaliforniaCollege.edu? 
 

CCGI manages the CaliforniaColleges.edu URL and contracts with a vendor to supply the 
college and career planning software.  

 
Page: N/A 
Section: N/A 
Will CCGI share the current contract for services with the incumbent provider of CaliforniaCollege.edu 
platform? 
 

CCGI does not plan to share the current contract for services. 
 
Page: N/A 
Section: N/A 
Can you share what technology and services CCGI currently contracts for with the incumbent provider 
of CaliforniaColleges.edu?  
 

CCGI is seeking the technology and services outlined in this RFP and does not plan to share 
detail regarding their current platform. 
 

Page: N/A 
Section: N/A 
Can you share what the budget is for the procurement provided for in the RFP? 
 

CCGI does not plan to share a budget for this procurement. 
 


